Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

Special Meeting Notice

Date: October 8, 2020

To: John Jennings
W. Edward Walldroff
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.

Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier
From: Chairman David Converse
Re: SPECIAL Board of Directors’ Meeting

A Special Board of Directors’ Meeting has been scheduled for Thursday, October 15, 2020 at
8:30 a.m. in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue Watertown, NY. You may also join via

zoom at the following link https: 06 SEIu 1
Meeting ID: 620 274 1706, Password: 800 1 929 205 6099 US (New York)

The purpose of the special meeting is to consider the following:

1. Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.01 for Adams Renewables, LLC
2. Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.02 for Black River Solar, LL.C
3. Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.03 for ASA Clayton NY Solar I LLC
4. Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.04 for GSPP 24658 County Route 47 North,
LLC
5. Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.05 for GSPP 24658 County Route 47 South,
LLC
6. PJ Simao’s Corporate Park Entrance Proposal
pss
G Donald Alexander  David Zembiec
Lyle Eaton Joseph Russell, Esq.
Christine Powers Matthew Moses, Esq.
Kent Burto
Gregory Gardner
Robert Aiken
Media



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

I
II1.

1A%

Special Meeting
Thursday, October 15, 2020
8:30 a.m.

Agenda

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Special Business

1. Consider Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.01 for Adams Renewables, LL.C

2. Consider Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.02 for Black River Solar, LLC

3. Consider Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.03 for ASA Clayton NY Solar I
LLC

4. Consider Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.04 for GSPP 24658 County
Route 47 North, LLC

5. Consider Authorizing Resolution No. 10.15.2020.05 for GSPP 24658 County
Route 47 South, LL.C

6. PJ Simao’s Corporate Park Entrance Proposal

Adjournment



AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION D ﬁ t{i FT

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in the
City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on October 15, 2020 at 8:30 o’clock a.m., local
time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by ,secondedby _______,to

wit:
Resolution No. 10.15.2020.01

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD A
STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH ADAMS RENEWABLES,
LLC (THE “COMPANY") FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND EQUIPPING OF A SOLAR-
POWERED ELECTRIC GENERATING FACILITY IN THE TOWN OF
ADAMS,

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound

00002427.2 1 -3-



commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, install, and equip one or more “projects” (as
defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, installed, and
equipped, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to
purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency
on or about April 27, 2020, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting
that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following:
(A) (1) the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a certain parcel of land located in the Town
of Adams, to wit: tax parcel 107.00-1-53.5, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2)
construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-powered electric generating
facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total planned alternating
current output capacity of 3.33 megawatts (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes, mortgage recording
taxes, and real property taxes for the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes)
(collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to
the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon
by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of
the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the Project
Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and (C) the completion
of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities
of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of
New York (the “Regulations”, and together with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the members of the
Agency adopted a resolution on August 6, 2020 (the “Environmental Resolution”) by which

000024272 2 -4-



T AT

DRAF]
the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes a “Type I Action” pursuant to SEQRA,
(B) that the Town of Adams Planning Board conducted a coordinated review of the Project
pursuant to SEQRA and issued negative declaration, determining that the Project will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact, and that, although the Agency was not
included as an involved agency in the review conducted by the Town of Adams Planning
Board, the members of the Agency reviewed the record of proceedings before the Town of
Adams Planning Board and the full environmental assessment form and concurred with the
Town of Adams Planning Board's determination, (C) that the Project will not have a
“significant adverse impact on the environment” pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore, that no
environmental impact statement need be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on August 6, 2020, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A)
caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project
and the contemplated Financial Assistance (the “Public Hearing") to be mailed on August 15,
2020 to the chief executive officers of the county, town and school district in which the
Project is to be located, (B) caused notices of the Public Hearing to be published on August
15, 2020, in the Watertown Daily Times, a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the County of Jefferson, (C) conducted the Public Hearing virtually via Zoom on
August 28, 2020 at 10:30 A.M,, local time from the Agency offices located at 800 Starbuck
Avenue, Watertown, New York, and (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing which fairly
summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and distributed same to members of
the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Tax Exemption Resolution adopted by the members of the
Agency on October 1, 2020 (the “Tax Exemption Resolution”), the Agency determined that
the granting of the proposed Financial Assistance, taking into account the provisions of the
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”) and the County of Jefferson’s request for
indemnification by the Company of the local share of any sales and use taxes rendered
exempt by the Financial Assistance, would not represent a deviation from its UTEP; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial
Assistance, the Agency proposes to enter into the following documents with the Company
(collectively, the “Agency Documents”): (A) a certain company lease agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant,
pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility (the “Company
Lease"); (B) a certain bill of sale from the Company to the Agency pursuant to which the
Agency will acquire an interest in machinery, equipment, and personal property related to
the Project Facility (the “Bill of Sale”); (C) a certain lease and project agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Agency, as sublessor, and the Company, as
sublessee, pursuant to which the Agency will sublease the Project Facility and machinery,
equipment, and personal property related to the Project Facility back to the Company (the
“Agency Lease”); (D) a certain agreement for payments in lieu of tax (“PILOT") by and
between the Agency and the Company with respect to the Project Facility (the “PILOT
Agreement”); and (E) various other documents and certificates relating to the Project
(together with the Agency Documents, the “Closing Documents”); and

00002427.2 3 =5-



U W
Ui AFT

WHEREAS, the Agency will file with the assessor and mail to the chief executive
officers of each “affected tax jurisdiction” (within the meaning of such quoted term in
Section B54(16) of the Act) a copy of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form
RP-412-a (the form required to be filed by the Agency in order for the Agency to obtain a real
property tax exemption with respect to the Project Facility under Section 412-a of the Real

Property Tax Law) relating to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing
the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating with respect to the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency, based upon the representations made by the Company to the
Agency in the Application, hereby finds and determines that:

(A)  Byvirtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act
and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;

(B) The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act;

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of Jefferson County,
New York;

(D)  The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility
of any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State to
another area in the State and will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State;

(E)  The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property
that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third

of the total cost of the Project;

(F)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the
Project will promote the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the State and
improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the
Act;

(G)  The Agency has reviewed the Public Hearing Report and has fully considered
all comments contained therein;

00002427.2 ‘ 4 -f-



DR AFT
(H)  The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with

the Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the
Agency to provide the Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein;

(0 The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the
estimated value of any tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private
sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the Project, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for
municipalities and school districts, and any other public benefits that might
occur as a result of the Project;

1) The Project should receive the contemplated Financial Assistance; and

(K) Itisdesirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the Agency
Documents.

Section 2. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to and is
hereby authorized to: (A) proceed with the Project; (B) acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to the Company Lease; (C) acquire an interest in
the machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project from the Company
pursuant to the Bill of Sale; (D) acquire, construct, install, and equip the Project Facility, or
cause the Project Facility to be acquired, installed, constructed, and equipped; (E) lease the
Project Facility and machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project
Facility to the Company pursuant to the Agency Lease, which the Agency further determines
constitutes a “Project Agreement” within the meaning of General Municipal Law § 859-a;
(F) grant to the Company the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project; (G) enter into
a PILOT agreement containing payment amounts set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, to
be distributed to the affected tax jurisdictions in proportion to their respective shares of the
combined tax rate as such shares may change from time to time over the term of the PILOT
agreement; and (H) do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment of the
foregoing, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to the foregoing are
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to appoint, and hereby appoints, the
Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, install, and equip
the Project Facility as described in the Agency Documents, and to do all things necessary or
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with
respect to such acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency, with the assistance of Agency counsel, are authorized to
negotiate and approve the form and substance of the Agency Documents.

00002427.2 Ty



cti

(A)

(B)

e AET
R AR

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to execute and deliver the Agency Documents, and, where appropriate, the
Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in the forms thereof
as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief Executive Officer to
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the
Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency
(as defined in and pursuant to the Agency Lease).

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things
required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and
deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in
the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

David ]. v VOTING

n Jenni VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L'Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

00002427.2



AR
STATE OF NEW YORK ) E{*ﬁ _f’@ﬁ 'y ﬁ

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.:

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that [ have compared the foregoing extract of
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained
therein, held on October 15, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject matters
therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public and
due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present through
said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this ___day of 2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

00002427.2 7 -9-



00002427 .2

Exhibit A

DRAFT

PIL n
Year PILOT Payment
($)

1 24,166.25
2 23,692.41
3 23,227.85
4 22,772.40
5 22,325.88
6 21,888.12
7 21,458.94
8 21,038.18
9 20,625.66
10 20,221.24
11 19,824.75
12 19,436.02
13 19,054.93
14 18,681.30
15 18,315.00

§ 40



i:jm:-:")-l'l_:':r:_‘:) '\ e
AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION ﬁl}‘ iR 5@?& ﬁ"—' ?

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in the
City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on October 15, 2020 at 8:30 o’clock a.m., local
time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by ,secondedby . to

wit:
Resolution No. 10.15.2020.02

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD A
STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH BLACK RIVER SOLAR,
LLC (THE “COMPANY”) FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND EQUIPPING OF A SOLAR-
POWERED ELECTRIC GENERATING FACILITY IN THE TOWN OF
LERAY.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound

00002426.2 1 -11-



g .----. ey

u'\? 1

J"Eﬂmé“"&ﬂ

commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, install, and equip one or more “projects” (as
defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, installed, and
equipped, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to
purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency
on or about April 27, 2020, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting
that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following:
(A) (1) the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a certain parcel of land located in the Town
of LeRay, to wit: tax parcel 75.17-1-23.41, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2)
construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-powered electric generating
facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total planned alternating
current output capacity of 3.93 megawatts (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes, mortgage recording
taxes, and real property taxes for the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes)
(collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to
the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon
by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of
the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the Project
Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and (C) the completion
of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities
of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of
New York (the “Regulations”, and together with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the members of the
Agency adopted a resolution on August 6, 2020 (the “Environmental Resolution”) by which

000024262 2 -12-



s 175 ,f-}

ll __;?; 2 % ‘J <Y g
the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes a “Type I Action” pursuant to SEQRA,
(B) that the Town of LeRay Planning Board conducted a coordinated review of the Project
pursuant to SEQRA and issued negative declaration, determining that the Project will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact, and that the members of the Agency
reviewed the record of proceedings before the Town of LeRay Planning Board and the full
environmental assessment form and concurred with the Town of LeRay Planning Board’s
determination, (C) that the Project will not have a “significant adverse impact on the
environment” pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore, that no environmental impact statement
need be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on August 6, 2020, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A)
caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project
and the contemplated Financial Assistance (the “Public Hearing") to be mailed on August 15,
2020 to the chief executive officers of the county, town and school district in which the
Project is to be located, (B) caused notices of the Public Hearing to be published on August
15, 2020, in the Watertown Daily Times, a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the County of Jefferson, (C) conducted the Public Hearing virtually via Zoom on
August 28, 2020 at 10:00 A.M., local time from the Agency offices located at 800 Starbuck
Avenue, Watertown, New York, and (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing which fairly
summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and distributed same to members of
the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Tax Exemption Resolution adopted by the members of the
Agency on October 1, 2020 (the “Tax Exemption Resolution”), the Agency determined that
the granting of the proposed Financial Assistance, taking into account the provisions of the
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP") and the County of Jefferson’s request for
indemnification by the Company of the local share of any sales and use taxes rendered
exempt by the Financial Assistance, would not represent a deviation from its UTEP; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial
Assistance, the Agency proposes to enter into the following documents with the Company
(collectively, the “Agency Documents”): (A) a certain company lease agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant,
pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility (the “Company
Lease"); (B) a certain bill of sale from the Company to the Agency pursuant to which the
Agency will acquire an interest in machinery, equipment, and personal property related to
the Project Facility (the “Bill of Sale”); (C) a certain lease and project agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Agency, as sublessor, and the Company, as
sublessee, pursuant to which the Agency will sublease the Project Facility and machinery,
equipment, and personal property related to the Project Facility back to the Company (the
“Agency Lease”); (D) a certain agreement for payments in lieu of tax (“PILOT”) by and
between the Agency and the Company with respect to the Project Facility (the “PILOT
Agreement”); and (E) various other documents and certificates relating to the Project
(together with the Agency Documents, the “Closing Documents”); and

00002426.2 3 -13-



T

peg, Uy f, OO S
Muma"”uﬂ B

WHEREAS, the Agency will file with the assessor and mail to the chief executive
officers of each “affected tax jurisdiction” (within the meaning of such quoted term in
Section 854(16) of the Act) a copy of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form
RP-412-a (the form required to be filed by the Agency in order for the Agency to obtain a real
property tax exemption with respect to the Project Facility under Section 412-a of the Real
Property Tax Law) relating to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing
the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating with respect to the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency, based upon the representations made by the Company to the
Agency in the Application, hereby finds and determines that:

(A)  Byvirtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act
and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;

(B) The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act;

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of Jefferson County,
New York;

(D) The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility
of any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State to
another area in the State and will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State;

(E) The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property
that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third
of the total cost of the Project;

(F)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the
Project will promote the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the State and
improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the
Act;

(G)  The Agency has reviewed the Public Hearing Report and has fully considered
all comments contained therein;

00002426.2 4 -14-



] b i, [
i gLy i R
AV VI

(H) The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with
the Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the
Agency to provide the Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein;

(1) The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the
estimated value of any tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private
sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the Project, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for
municipalities and school districts, and any other public benefits that might
occur as a result of the Project;

(0 The Project should receive the contemplated Financial Assistance; and

(K) Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the Agency
Documents.

Section 2. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to and is
hereby authorized to: (A) proceed with the Project; (B) acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to the Company Lease; (C) acquire an interest in
the machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project from the Company
pursuant to the Bill of Sale; (D) acquire, construct, install, and equip the Project Facility, or
cause the Project Facility to be acquired, installed, constructed, and equipped; (E) lease the
Project Facility and machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project
Facility to the Company pursuant to the Agency Lease, which the Agency further determines
constitutes a “Project Agreement” within the meaning of General Municipal Law § 859-a;
(F) grant to the Company the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project; (G) enter into
a PILOT agreement containing payment amounts set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, to
be distributed to the affected tax jurisdictions in proportion to their respective shares of the
combined tax rate as such shares may change from time to time over the term of the PILOT
agreement; and (H) do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment of the
foregoing, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to the foregoing are
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to appoint, and hereby appoints, the
Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, install, and equip
the Project Facility as described in the Agency Documents, and to do all things necessary or
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with
respect to such acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief

Executive Officer of the Agency, with the assistance of Agency counsel, are authorized to
negotiate and approve the form and substance of the Agency Documents.

Section 5.

00002426.2 5 -15-



(A)

(B)

i o [ R s
i) H‘\ i
. 5 femm

LA A= 1§

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to execute and deliver the Agency Documents, and, where appropriate, the
Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in the forms thereof
as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief Executive Officer to
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the
Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency
(as defined in and pursuant to the Agency Lease).

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things
required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and
deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in
the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

avid . v VOTING
John Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, [r. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L'Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

00002426.2



pn v e

STATE OF NEW YORK ) D /\ fea
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.: LA iS40 #

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that | have compared the foregoing extract of
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained
therein, held on October 15, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject matters
therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public and
due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present through
said meeting.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this ___day of 2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

00002426.2 7 -17-



00002426.2

Exhibit A

PILOT Payments
Year PILOT Payment
($)

1 28,520.53
2 27,961.31
3 27,413.05
4 26,875.54
5 26,348.56
6 25,831.93
7 25,325.42
8 24,828.84
9 24,342.00
10 23,864.71
11 23,396.77
12 22,938.01
13 22,488.25
14 22,047.30
15 21,615.00

8 -18-

[.:"?~ r—": "l.“\ Ir‘:n: r.';'.

) g AW L | 3
i Wy e, |s
-':'!,r" A AR 8



e b o e

| Bt H% e |

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION LA 44l rﬁ
A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in the

City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on October 15, 2020 at 8:30 o’clock a.m., local
time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by ,secondedby __ ,to

wit:
Resolution No. 10.15.2020.03

RESOLUTION OF THE ]JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD A
STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH ASA CLAYTON NY
SOLAR I LLC (THE “COMPANY”) FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE
ACQUISITION,  CONSTRUCTION,  INSTALLATION, AND
EQUIPPING OF A SOLAR-POWERED ELECTRIC GENERATING
FACILITY IN THE TOWN OF CLAYTON.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound

00002433.1 1 -19-



Lo B0 478 8
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, install, and equip one or more “projects” (as
defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, installed, and
equipped, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to
purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency
on or about July 7, 2020, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that
the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A)(1)
the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a certain parcel of land located in the Town of
Clayton, to wit: tax parcel 41.00-2-5.1, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2)
construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-powered electric generating
facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total planned alternating
current output capacity of 1.25 megawatts (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes and real property
taxes for the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes) (collectively, the
“Financial Assistance”); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to the Company or
such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency;
and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of
the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the Project
Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and (C) the completion
of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities
of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of
New York (the “Regulations”, and together with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the members of the
Agency adopted a resolution on September 10, 2020 (the “Environmental Resolution”) by

00002433.1 2 -20-



PPam, Tem o e e

h b!ﬂ\\f', \"?u«,f H
which the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes a “Type I Action” pursuant to
SEQRA, (B) that the Town of Clayton Planning Board, acting as lead agency, conducted a
coordinated review of the Project pursuant to SEQRA and issued negative declaration,
determining that the Project will not have a significant adverse environmental impact, and
that, although the Agency was not included as an involved agency in the review conducted
by the Town of Clayton Planning Board, the members of the Agency reviewed the record of
proceedings before the Town of Clayton Planning Board and the full environmental
assessment form and concurred with the Town of Clayton Planning Board’s determination,
(C) that the Project will not have a “significant adverse impact on the environment” pursuant
to SEQRA and, therefore, that no environmental impact statement need be prepared with
respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on September 10, 2020, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A)
caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project
and the contemplated Financial Assistance (the “Public Hearing") to be mailed on October 2,
2020 to the chief executive officers of the county, town and school district in which the
Project is to be located, (B) caused notices of the Public Hearing to be published on October
2, 2020, in the Watertown Daily Times, a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the County of Jefferson, (C) conducted the Public Hearing virtually via Zoom on
October 13, 2020 at 10:00 A.M,, local time from the Agency offices located at 800 Starbuck
Avenue, Watertown, New York, and (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing which fairly
summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and distributed same to members of
the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Tax Exemption Resolution adopted by the members of the
Agency on October 1, 2020 (the "Tax Exemption Resolution”), the Agency determined that
the granting of the proposed Financial Assistance, taking into account the provisions of the
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP") and the County of Jefferson’s request for
indemnification by the Company of the local share of any sales and use taxes rendered
exempt by the Financial Assistance, would not represent a deviation from its UTEP; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial
Assistance, the Agency proposes to enter into the following documents with the Company
(collectively, the “Agency Documents”): (A) a certain company lease agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant,
pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility (the “Company
Lease"); (B) a certain bill of sale from the Company to the Agency pursuant to which the
Agency will acquire an interest in machinery, equipment, and personal property related to
the Project Facility (the “Bill of Sale”); (C) a certain lease and project agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Agency, as sublessor, and the Company, as
sublessee, pursuant to which the Agency will sublease the Project Facility and machinery,
equipment, and personal property related to the Project Facility back to the Company (the
“Agency Lease"); (D) a certain agreement for payments in lieu of tax (“PILOT") by and
between the Agency and the Company with respect to the Project Facility (the “PILOT

00002433.1 3 -21-



Agreement”); and (E) various other documents and certificates relating to the Project
(together with the Agency Documents, the “Closing Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency will file with the assessor and mail to the chief executive
officers of each “affected tax jurisdiction” (within the meaning of such quoted term in
Section 854(16) of the Act) a copy of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form
RP-412-a (the form required to be filed by the Agency in order for the Agency to obtain a real
property tax exemption with respect to the Project Facility under Section 412-a of the Real
Property Tax Law) relating to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing
the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating with respect to the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency, based upon the representations made by the Company to the
Agency in the Application, hereby finds and determines that:

(A)  Byvirtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act
and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;

(B)  The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act;

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of Jefferson County,
New York;

(D)  The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility
of any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State to
another area in the State and will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State;

(E) The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property
that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third
of the total cost of the Project;

(F)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the
Project will promote the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the State and
improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the

Act;

00002433.1 4 _22-



FmED A

!“L’;—:.'A" ' L% f:‘.:':\l.‘%'\ ui ) Q
(G)  The Agency has reviewed the Public Hearing Report and has fully considered
all comments contained therein;

(H) The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with
the Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the
Agency to provide the Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein;

(D The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the
estimated value of any tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private
sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the Project, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for
municipalities and school districts, and any other public benefits that might
occur as a result of the Project;

1)) The Project should receive the contemplated Financial Assistance; and

(K) Itisdesirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the Agency
Documents.

Section 2. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to and is
hereby authorized to: (A) proceed with the Project; (B) acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to the Company Lease; (C) acquire an interest in
the machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project from the Company
pursuant to the Bill of Sale; (D) acquire, construct, install, and equip the Project Facility, or
cause the Project Facility to be acquired, installed, constructed, and equipped; (E) lease the
Project Facility and machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project
Facility to the Company pursuant to the Agency Lease, which the Agency further determines
constitutes a “Project Agreement” within the meaning of General Municipal Law § 859-a;
(F) grant to the Company the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project; (G) enter into
a PILOT agreement containing payment amounts set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, to
be distributed to the affected tax jurisdictions in proportion to their respective shares of the
combined tax rate as such shares may change from time to time over the term of the PILOT
agreement; and (H) do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment of the
foregoing, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to the foregoing are
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to appoint, and hereby appoints, the
Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, install, and equip
the Project Facility as described in'the Agency Documents, and to do all things necessary or
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with
respect to such acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency, with the assistance of Agency counsel, are authorized to
negotiate and approve the form and substance of the Agency Documents.

00002433.1 5 <23



Section 5.

(A)

(B)

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to execute and deliver the Agency Documents, and, where appropriate, the
Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in the forms thereof
as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief Executive Officer to
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the
Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency
(as defined in and pursuant to the Agency Lease).

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things
required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and
deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in
the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

David |. Converse VOTING
John Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. VOTING

w lldrof! VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L’Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

00002433.1

6 -24-



STATE OF NEW YORK ) Ty A e
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.: LIS AR

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that 1 have compared the foregoing extract of
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained
therein, held on October 15, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject matters
therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public and
due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present through
said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this ___ day of 2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

00002433.1 7 -25-



00002433.1

Exhibit A i e 4

L ent
Year PILOT Payment
(%)
1 9,071.42
2 8,893.55
3 8,719.16
4 8,548.20
5 8,380.59
6 8,216.26
7 8,055.16
8 7,897.21
9 7,742.37
10 7,590.56
11 7,441.72
12 7,295.81
13 7, 152.75
14 7,012.50
15 6,875.00

8

<26-




PEINT

o/ e 0=40 B

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in the
City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on October 15, 2020 at 8:30 o'clock a.m,, local
time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by , seconded by , to
wit:

Resolution No. 10.15.2020.04

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD A
STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH GSPP 24658 COUNTY
ROUTE 47 NORTH, LLC (THE “COMPANY”) FOR THE PURPOSE OF
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND
EQUIPPING OF A SOLAR-POWERED ELECTRIC GENERATING
FACILITY IN THE TOWN OF CHAMPION.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound

00002430.1 1 -27-



Frrsd 3o
O] "!

byl 400
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, install, and equip one or more “projects” (as
defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, installed, and
equipped, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to
purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency
on or about May 6, 2020, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that
the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A)(1)
the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a certain parcel of land located in the Town of
Champion, to wit: tax parcel 76.06-1-38.1, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2)
construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-powered electric generating
facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total planned alternating
current output capacity of 0.875 megawatts (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes and real property
taxes for the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes) (collectively, the
“Financial Assistance”); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to the Company or
such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency;
and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of
the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the Project
Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and (C) the completion
of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities
of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of
New York (the “Regulations”, and together with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA"), the members of the
Agency adopted a resolution on September 10, 2020 (the “Environmental Resolution”) by

00002430.1 2 -28-



poem, TR N\ f e

LR |
which the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes an “Unlisted Action” pursuant
to SEQRA, (B) that the Town of Champion Planning Board, acting as lead agency, conducted
an uncoordinated review of the Project pursuant to SEQRA and issued negative declaration,
determining that the Project will not have a significant adverse environmental impact, and
that the members of the Agency reviewed the record of proceedings before the Town of
Champion Planning Board and the full environmental assessment form and concurred with
the Town of Champion Planning Board's determination, (C) that the Project will not have a
“significant adverse impact on the environment” pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore, that no
environmental impact statement need be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on September 10, 2020, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A)
caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project
and the contemplated Financial Assistance (the “Public Hearing”) to be mailed on October 2,
2020 to the chief executive officers of the county, town and school district in which the
Project is to be located, (B) caused notices of the Public Hearing to be published on October
2, 2020, in the Watertown Daily Times, a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the County of Jefferson, (C) conducted the Public Hearing virtually via Zoom on
October 13, 2020 at 10:30 A.M.,, local time from the Agency offices located at 800 Starbuck
Avenue, Watertown, New York, and (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing which fairly
summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and distributed same to members of
the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Tax Exemption Resolution adopted by the members of the
Agency on October 1, 2020 (the “Tax Exemption Resolution”), the Agency determined that
the granting of the proposed Financial Assistance, taking into account the provisions of the
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”) and the County of Jefferson’s request for
indemnification by the Company of the local share of any sales and use taxes rendered
exempt by the Financial Assistance, would not represent a deviation from its UTEP; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial
Assistance, the Agency proposes to enter into the following documents with the Company
(collectively, the “Agency Documents”): (A) a certain company lease agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant,
pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility (the “Company
Lease”); (B) a certain bill of sale from the Company to the Agency pursuant to which the
Agency will acquire an interest in machinery, equipment, and personal property related to
the Project Facility (the “Bill of Sale”); (C) a certain lease and project agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Agency, as sublessor, and the Company, as
sublessee, pursuant to which the Agency will sublease the Project Facility and machinery,
equipment, and personal property related to the Project Facility back to the Company (the
“Agency Lease”); (D) a certain agreement for payments in lieu of tax (“PILOT") by and
between the Agency and the Company with respect to the Project Facility (the “PILOT
Agreement”); and (E) various other documents and certificates relating to the Project
(together with the Agency Documents, the “Closing Documents”); and

00002430.1 3 -29-



WHEREAS, the Agency will file with the assessor and mail to the chief executive
officers of each “affected tax jurisdiction” (within the meaning of such quoted term in
Section 854(16) of the Act) a copy of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form
RP-412-a (the form required to be filed by the Agency in order for the Agency to obtain a real
property tax exemption with respect to the Project Facility under Section 412-a of the Real
Property Tax Law) relating to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing
the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating with respect to the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency, based upon the representations made by the Company to the
Agency in the Application, hereby finds and determines that:

(A)  Byvirtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act
and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;

(B)  The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act;

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of Jefferson County,
New York;

(D)  The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility
of any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State to
anotherarea in the State and will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State;

(E)  The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property
that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third
of the total cost of the Project;

(F)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the
Project will promote the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the State and
improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the
Act;

(G) The Agency has reviewed the Public Hearing Report and has fully considered
all comments contained therein;

00002430.1 4 -30-



WM AL W dsw B
u..-/‘.'.‘ WA Y l.l'i

(H)  The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with
the Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the
Agency to provide the Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein;

(1 The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the
estimated value of any tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private
sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the Project, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for
municipalities and school districts, and any other public benefits that might
occur as a result of the Project;

)] The Project should receive the contemplated Financial Assistance; and

(K) Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the Agency
Documents.

Section 2. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to and is
hereby authorized to: (A) proceed with the Project; (B) acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to the Company Lease; (C) acquire an interest in
the machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project from the Company
pursuant to the Bill of Sale; (D) acquire, construct, install, and equip the Project Facility, or
cause the Project Facility to be acquired, installed, constructed, and equipped; (E) lease the
Project Facility and machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project
Facility to the Company pursuant to the Agency Lease, which the Agency further determines
constitutes a “Project Agreement” within the meaning of General Municipal Law § 859-a;
(F) grant to the Company the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project; (G) enter into
a PILOT agreement containing payment amounts set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, to
be distributed to the affected tax jurisdictions in proportion to their respective shares of the
combined tax rate as such shares may change from time to time over the term of the PILOT
agreement; and (H) do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment of the
foregoing, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to the foregoing are
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to appoint, and hereby appoints, the
Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, install, and equip
the Project Facility as described in the Agency Documents, and to do all things necessary or
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with
respect to such acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency, with the assistance of Agency counsel, are authorized to
negotiate and approve the form and substance of the Agency Documents.

Section 5.

000024301 5 -31-



(4)

(B)

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to execute and deliver the Agency Documents, and, where appropriate, the
Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in the forms thereof
as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief Executive Officer to
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the
Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency
(as defined in and pursuant to the Agency Lease).

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things
required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and
deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in
the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on

roll call, which resulted as follows:

David ]. Converse VOTING
John Jennings VOTING

er li VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L'Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

00002430.1

6 -32-



STATE OF NEWYORK ) 1 i
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.: |

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained
therein, held on October 15, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject matters

therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public and
due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present through

said meeting.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this __ day of , 2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

00002430.1 7 -33-



00002430.1

35

0B
Bt 3 °

Exhibit A
PILOT Payments
Year PILOT Payment
($)
1 6,349.99
2 6,225.48
3 6,103.41
4 5,983.74
5 5,866.41
6 5,751.38
7 5,638.61
8 5,528.05
9 5,419.66
10 5,313.39
11 5,209.20
12 5,107.06
13 5,006.93
14 4,908.75
15 4,812.50
8 -34-

%

w3

i

) !
L5 of
8 |

=

[l dl = -

l.-i.'. 1



AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION LI TR §
A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in the

City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on October 15, 2020 at 8:30 o’clock a.m,, local
time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by , seconded by to
wit:

Resolution No. 10.15.2020.05

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD A
STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH GSPP 24658 COUNTY
ROUTE 47 SOUTH, LLC (THE “COMPANY") FOR THE PURPOSE OF
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND
EQUIPPING OF A SOLAR-POWERED ELECTRIC GENERATING
FACILITY IN THE TOWN OF CHAMPION.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound

00002432.1 1 -35-



commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prbsperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, install, and equip one or more “projects” (as
defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, installed, and
equipped, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to
purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency
on or about May 6, 2020, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that
the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A)(1)
the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a certain parcel of land located in the Town of
Champion, to wit: tax parcel 76.06-1-38.1, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2)
construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-powered electric generating
facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total planned alternating
current output capacity of 0.875 megawatts (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes and real property
taxes for the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes) (collectively, the
“Financial Assistance”); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to the Company or
such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency;
and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of
the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the Project
Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and (C) the completion
of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities
of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of
New York (the “Regulations”, and together with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the members of the
Agency adopted a resolution on September 10, 2020 (the “Environmental Resolution”) by

00002432.1 2 -36-



which the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes an “Unlisted Action” pursuant
to SEQRA, (B) that the Town of Champion Planning Board, acting as lead agency, conducted
an uncoordinated review of the Project pursuant to SEQRA and issued negative declaration,
determining that the Project will not have a significant adverse environmental impact, and
that the members of the Agency reviewed the record of proceedings before the Town of
Champion Planning Board and the full environmental assessment form and concurred with
the Town of Champion Planning Board’s determination, (C) that the Project will not have a
“significant adverse impact on the environment” pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore, that no
environmental impact statement need be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on September 10, 2020, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A)
caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project
and the contemplated Financial Assistance (the “Public Hearing") to be mailed on October 2,
2020 to the chief executive officers of the county, town and school district in which the
Project is to be located, (B) caused notices of the Public Hearing to be published on October
2, 2020, in the Watertown Daily Times, a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the County of Jefferson, (C) conducted the Public Hearing virtually via Zoom on
October 13, 2020 at 11:00 A.M.,, local time from the Agency offices located at 800 Starbuck
Avenue, Watertown, New York, and (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing which fairly
summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and distributed same to members of

the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Tax Exemption Resolution adopted by the members of the
Agency on October 1, 2020 (the “Tax Exemption Resolution”), the Agency determined that
the granting of the proposed Financial Assistance, taking into account the provisions of the
Agency'’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP") and the County of Jefferson’s request for
indemnification by the Company of the local share of any sales and use taxes rendered
exempt by the Financial Assistance, would not represent a deviation from its UTEP; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial
Assistance, the Agency proposes to enter into the following documents with the Company
(collectively, the “Agency Documents”): (A) a certain company lease agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant,
pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility (the “Company
Lease”); (B) a certain bill of sale from the Company to the Agency pursuant to which the
Agency will acquire an interest in machinery, equipment, and personal property related to
the Project Facility (the “Bill of Sale”); (C) a certain lease and project agreement (and a
memorandum thereof) by and between the Agency, as sublessor, and the Company, as
sublessee, pursuant to which the Agency will sublease the Project Facility and machinery,
equipment, and personal property related to the Project Facility back to the Company (the
“Agency Lease”); (D) a certain agreement for payments in lieu of tax (“PILOT") by and
between the Agency and the Company with respect to the Project Facility (the “PILOT
Agreement”); and (E) various other documents and certificates relating to the Project
(together with the Agency Documents, the “Closing Documents”); and

00002432.1 3 -37-



8 Bue® N e

b 4 i}

WHEREAS, the Agency will file with the assessor and mail to the chief executive
officers of each “affected tax jurisdiction” (within the meaning of such quoted term in
Section 854(16) of the Act) a copy of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form
RP-412-a (the form required to be filed by the Agency in order for the Agency to obtain areal
property tax exemption with respect to the Project Facility under Section 412-a of the Real
Property Tax Law) relating to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing
the Project and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating with respect to the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency, based upon the representations made by the Company to the
Agency in the Application, hereby finds and determines that:

(A)  Byvirtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act
and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;

(B)  The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act;

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of Jefferson County,
New York;

(D)  The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility
of any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State to
another area in the State and will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State;

(E)  The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property
that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third
of the total cost of the Project;

(F)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the
Project will promote the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the State and
improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the

Act;

(G) The Agency has reviewed the Public Hearing Report and has fully considered
all comments contained therein;

00002432.1 4 - 38 -



B g ek =

LG e A
(H)  The Agency has assessed all material information included in connection with
the Application necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the
Agency to provide the Financial Assistance for the Project as described herein;

M The Agency has prepared a written cost-benefit analysis identifying the
estimated value of any tax exemption to be provided, the amount of private
sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the Project, and the
extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of revenue for
municipalities and school districts, and any other public benefits that might
occur as a result of the Project;

M The Project should receive the contemplated Financial Assistance; and

(K)  Itisdesirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the Agency
Documents.

Section 2. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to and is
hereby authorized to: (A) proceed with the Project; (B) acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to the Company Lease; (C) acquire an interest in
the machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project from the Company
pursuant to the Bill of Sale; (D) acquire, construct, install, and equip the Project Facility, or
cause the Project Facility to be acquired, installed, constructed, and equipped; (E) lease the
Project Facility and machinery, equipment, and personal property related to the Project
Facility to the Company pursuant to the Agency Lease, which the Agency further determines
constitutes a “Project Agreement” within the meaning of General Municipal Law § 859-a;
(F) grant to the Company the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project; (G) enter into
a PILOT agreement containing payment amounts set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, to
be distributed to the affected tax jurisdictions in proportion to their respective shares of the
combined tax rate as such shares may change from time to time over the term of the PILOT
agreement; and (H) do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment of the
foregoing, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to the foregoing are
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to appoint, and hereby appoints, the
Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, install, and equip
the Project Facility as described in the Agency Documents, and to do all things necessary or
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with
respect to such acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency, with the assistance of Agency counsel, are authorized to
negotiate and approve the form and substance of the Agency Documents.

ion

00002432,1 5 -39-



(A)

(B)

R B g i
The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency,
to execute and deliver the Agency Documents, and, where appropriate, the
Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in the forms thereof
as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, or Deputy Chief Executive Officer to
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the
Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency
(as defined in and pursuant to the Agency Lease).

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things
required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and
deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in
the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on

roll call, which resulted as follows:

David ]. Converse VOTING
Iohn Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, [r. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING

rnec VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L'Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

00002432.1

6 -40-



STATE OF NEW YORK ) Rl L% 4
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.:

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained
therein, held on October 15, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject matters
therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general public and
due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present through

said meeting.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this ___ day of , 2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

00002432.1 7 -4]-



00002432.1

Exhibit A

PILOT Payments
Year PILOT Payment
($)
1 6,349.99
2 6,225.48
3 6,103.41
4 5,983.74
5 5,866.41
6 5,751.38
7 5,638.61
8 5,528.05
9 5,419.66
10 5,313.39
11 5,209.20
12 5,107.06
13 5,006.93
14 4,908.75
15 4,812.50

8 -42-




Peggy Sampson

From: Donald Alexander

Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2020 9:46 AM
To: Peggy Sampson

Subject: FW: Offer Rescinded

Peg...here is the updated information we just talked about.

I just sent this to the Board but let’s include a copy in the Board material. | expect a response from PJ and had been
waiting to hear.

Moving target.
Thanks.

Don

From. Donald Alexander

Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2020 9:05 AM

To: pj dealmakerusa.com <pj@dealmakerusa.com>

Cc: scottg@co.jefferson.ny.us; Boobah11l1l@yahoo.com; dave@converselabs.com
Subject: RE: Offer Rescinded

PJ;
Honestly, I am not even sure what you are talking about.

The TV reporter came over to ask me if I thought the settlement of the suit would improve
prospects for development in the Park and I said “Yes’. That was it. I had absolutely nothing to
do with the context or content of their story. If specifically refused to comment on the Lundy
news release which occurred, as I understand it, after the County announced their approval of

your proposal.

I took no sides, expressed no other opinions even though questions of the blame (why did this
settlement take so long) nature had been asked.

So I am not sure what your complaint is.

As regards the return call, I have only so many hours in the day—-I do the best I can trying to keep
the many activities we are dealing with moving ahead. There are some days, I simply don’t have
enough time and yesterday was one of those. Yours was not the only priority I was dealing with

yesterday.

The fact that you worked a toward a settlement with the County is a great step forward, one that I
have tried to assist with-—-so again I ask, what is it that you are mad about?

-43-



I forwarded your written offer to Board members last night and was told that the Board would
consider your offer in a special meeting to be held October 15" (we have public meeting notice
requirements you will remember).

If you are rescinding—then I will simply ask the Board to discontinue the discussion.

Don

From: pj dealmakerusa.com <pj@dealmakerusa.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2020 7:50 AM

To: Donald Alexander <dcalexander@jcida.com>

Cc: scottg@co.jefferson.ny.us; Boobahl11l@yahoo.com; dave@converselabs.com
Subject: Offer Rescinded

Don, | was very disappointed that you were involved with the 7 News story last night night concerning the resolution of
the litigation between the County and my Company. | was equally disappointed in that you had time to do the story but
not return my call yesterday as you said you would do. There were many inaccuracies in that story provided by you and
the IDA’s Preferred Developer Mr. Lundy. What you should’ve been doing is explaining why the IDA has been using their
resources to facilitate Mr. Lundy’s developments throughout the years. | am therefore rescinding my offer that | made

to the IDA yesterday in a 12:11 pm email.

P.J.

P.J. Simao

137 Main Ave,
Watertown N.Y. 13601
315-727-7000

On Oct 7, 2020, at 12:11 PM, pj dealmakerusa.com <pj@dealmakerusa.com> wrote:
Don, Per your below request | propose the following.

1) The Covenants that were with the land that was transferred to my company on the east side of the

IDA Entrance be removed.
2) | will sell the IDA a Perpetual Easement for a Sign to the Park located in the southwest corner of my

property on the east side of the IDA Entrance for $50k. Any property taxes associated with that Sign will
be responsibility of the IDA.

We have been talking about this long enough and although the County said that the issues were
separate the IDA wouldn’t proceed without the County Litigation being resolved. That has happened
and now it is time to resolve these issues too.

Thanks
P.J.

P.J. Simao
137 Main Ave.
Watertown N.Y. 13601

-44-



